AN UNREPORTED RAPE CASE

In the year 1993, a young village girl Haseena was spotted by Rashid Pahloo, an Ikhwan group commander, and his men in Hajin, Bandipora in north Kashmir. It was when Ikhwan terror was at its peak in the area. The state administration was evaporated, police was defunct and confined to their stations, people were more scared of dreaded Ikhwanis than the army. The district has completely fallen to Ikhwanis. They would kill, rape or loot at will with impunity. Rashid Pahloo after visiting the house of Ghulam Nabi repeatedly raped her daughter for months. 

The girl after submitting to Rashid Pahloo advances but finally revolted and managed to take away a grenade from Pahloo’s college Bashir Ahmad, who also came to rape her. The grenade was hid to avenge the treatment meted out to her at an appropriate time. As the result of which, she was tortured repeatedly by Rashid and his men for months. The repeated torture of Haseena resulted into her multiple health complicacies, as she was also pregnant due to repeated rape. She died at Srinagar hospital. No newspaper carried this incident. The whole episode proved a non-event. The girl’s father Ghulam Nabi joined militancy and after remaining active for two years died in an encounter with army at Kulhama Bandipora. Even Rashid Pahloo later killed her brother. Rashid Pahloo has now in People’s Democratic Party. 

There are hundreds of such cases which go unreported. Haseens’ brother Ghulam Hassan, who talked to the editor about the incident was only 7 years-old at the time of the incident, and was also helplessly watching like other family members the repeated rape of his sister inside a room of their house. Now a carpet weaver, Ghulam Hassan said that there is not a single photo of Haseena in the house even he cannot recollect the exact features of his sister, thereby, painting even a sketch is not possible for him. His sister has no academic document, as she was never enrolled in any the school. She did exist officially a non–person. Finally, with some persuasion Ghulam Hassan managed through local sources an FIR filed one year after the incident in Sumbal police station. In the FIR it was reported that Haseena has died one year before her rape. There is no explanation why the FIR was filed after one year and expectedly no investigation has been ever conducted. Routine-wise unknown persons has been mentioned in the FIR. This FIR can be agitated to re-open the investigation into the rape and death of the girl. Conscious of the fact that re-investigation is cumbersome. There are structural issues in the state for taking perpetrator to justice but we have to be conscious of the fact that litigation is not at end but an instrument of campaign to highlight the issue like that of Haseena.

It is more important when the perpetrators has no cover of legal impunity unlike armed forces and normally such ‘rouge elements’ after being over-used by their mentors, army and intelligence, are disowned and left on their own fate i.e. is a silver lining. The other silver lining is the re-opening of cases against the “private perpetrators” is sending a strong message to the state actors and their extensions that victims have not accepted but are still in mood to resist and agitate the injustice done to them by these people particularly the Ikhwanis, who are roaming free in their areas without shame, repentance, regret and atonement. 

We are detriment to document the crimes committed by the Ikhwanis throughout valley and also re-investigate as much cases as we can by the co-operation of the families, which sometimes seems very difficult as the victims cannot understand the long term implications of their inaction. All that is necessary for the perpetrator to get away is that victims doing nothing. Nevertheless, there are way and means to educate, impress and persuade them, which according to our own experience is doable. It needs time, one has to earn their confidence and finally they co-operate. 


APDP COMMEMORATES INTERNATIONAL DAY OF THE DISAPPEARED 

The Informative Missive 	22	August 2015

August 30: The members of Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) assembled in a park on the banks of river Jehlum at Lal Chowk to commemorate the International Day of the Disappeared. Relatives, mostly women, across different districts of Kashmir valley reached Srinagar to reiterate their demand to reveal the truth about their dear ones disappeared after being taken into custody by Indian forces deployed in Kashmir since 1989, the year which marked the eruption of armed conflict. Relatives displaying placards and banners highlighting the phenomenon and long-standing demands of the association. As of now, the Indian government is in denial mode to accept the reality about the phenomenon of disappearance in J&K. Moreover, APDP also memorializes hundreds and thousands of disappeared from Punjab (between 1984-1992), Assam, Manipur, Uttar Pradesh, Gujarat, Maharashtra and other states of India.
 (
Relatives of desaparecidos commemorating IDD
)[image: C:\Users\welcome\Desktop\miss ap1.jpg]During the sit in APDP releases a press statement, the complete text of which is incorporated herein below.
In Jammu and Kashmir, the government has failed to hold investigations into 8000+ cases of enforced disappearances and 7000+ unmarked and mass graves. Besides this, the survivor family members particularly half widows and half orphans have never been provided with relief or reparations with the result they continue to suffer.  The perpetrators of enforced disappearances have never been prosecuted.
	The Government of India has easily got away with crimes against humanity and war crimes in the Punjab state between 1984- 1992 and now it stabs to escape the responsibility of over more than 8000 cases of disappearances in Jammu and Kashmir. In December 1996 Central Bureau of Investigation [CBI] produced an investigation report on enforced disappearances and secret cremations carried out by the security forces in Punjab before the Supreme Court of India. The investigation was based on examination of three crematoria in Amritsar, which disclosed 2097 illegal cremations. Despite Supreme Court directed National Human Rights Commission to examine and determine the issue, including compensation that arises from the disclosure of flagrant violation of human rights at a mass scale. The CBI was to continue its investigation into the culpability of officials responsible, but so far none of perpetrators involved such a heinous crime has ever been prosecuted or brought to justice.
Before acclaiming Indian State and its democracy, the international community must question Indian state over its worst record of human rights violation, systematic institutional denial and continued impunity. Indian government signed the UN Convention against Disappearances in February 2007 but never ratified it. In spite of this, the government does not allow the United Nations Working Groups on Enforced or Involuntary Disappearances and on Arbitrary Detentions to visit the country. India has still not ratified the Convention against Torture, and ignored the requests by the U.N. Special Rapporteurs on torture. There is no development in relation to enact a domestic law for criminalizing enforced disappearances. Further, In Jammu and Kashmir the government of India exposed its complete indifference towards investigating more 7000 unmarked and mass graves despite the State Human Rights Commission recommended for a comprehensive forensic examination of such grave sites in Jammu and Kashmir. The Indian state has still kept all impunity laws in force for its armed forces, in all conflict areas, which results into the persistent atrocities to the innocent people.
The Indian government even after signing the Convention refuses to acknowledge the phenomenon of disappearances in Jammu and Kashmir and persists to block the International human rights groups and institutions campaigning for the prevention of enforced disappearance.
The family members of the disappeared are concerned about the growing isolation from the international community, which further compounds the problems of the relatives of the disappeared persons particularly the children who are in thousands. It is their future, which is at stake and for which the International intervention is required, as has been done in other conflict areas. The international disengagement in Kashmir on human rights issue has only helped the government of India for continuation of human rights abuses.
International community cannot escape the responsibility and must hold the Government of India accountable for human rights violations particularly enforced disappearances and complete institutional denial in Jammu and Kashmir and other parts of India.
As a part of ongoing campaigns APDP reiterates that it will always stand against India’s claim of permanent seat in the UN Security Council. The association reaffirms that it is our belief that the relatives of the disappeared who are fighting collectively against the phenomenon of disappearances are more than just survivors but warriors in the face of repression. Our struggle against impunity, for Truth and Justice and for the world without disappearances will continue vigorously until we achieve the success.

SURVIVORS OF SAILAN, MOHRA BACHIA MASSACRES HELD JOINT PROTEST IN SRINAGAR

 (
Survivors of 
Surankote
 massacres stage sit-in at Press Colony Srinagar
   
)[image: ]On August 3, to commemorate the anniversaries of twin massacres of Poonch district of Jammu province and to press the government to bring culprits to justice, the survivors held a sit-in at press colony at Lal Chowk, Srinagar. This is for the first time that the survivors from Poonch massacres came into open in Srinagar to register their protest. Holding placards and a big banner displaying the photo image of one of the main culprits, then Superintendent of Police (Poonch) J.P. Singh, the survivors demand that an impartial investigation must be conducted to bring perpetrators to justice. The survivors blame the successive governments and its agencies for shielding and promoting the known perpetrators. They (survivors) have apprehensions that further delay in taking action against the perpetrators could be fatal, as the perpetrators, now holding top positions, are quite capable of repeating th same with the rest of the survivors, who have raised their voice against the massacres and demand action against the perpetrators.  
On the 17th anniversary of a mass killing, the survivors of Sailan and Mohra Bachai massacres also protest the inaction of the CBI, the violence of the Indian army and Jammu and Kashmir police and the fact that perpetrators of crimes such as present IG (Traffic) J.P. Singh continue to be protected and rewarded by the various governments in power. The struggle for justice at the very least ensures that the crimes and the perpetrators are not forgotten. In the process the judicial process is also under scrutiny.
The only survivor off Mohra Bachia, Zahida Begam while talking to The Informative Missive said, “I have strong reasons to be apprehensive about my safety and safety of my parents with whom I am living now. The perpetrators are well aware of I being the sole eyewitness to the massacre could cause discomfort to them. I am sure that they have kept a close eye on me.” 
The Sailan massacre survivors accused the CBI, which is investigating the massacre, of favoring the perpetrators. “The CBI’s docile approach towards the investigation is enough indication of their non-seriousness, which only benefits the perpetrators. CBI is playing tricks with us, they (CBI officials) only wants to sabotage the investigation by tiring us,” the survivors alleged.   
On the night of 3– 4 August 1998, 19 people, including 11 children ranging in age from about 4 years to 15 years, and 5 women (including one woman in an advanced stage of pregnancy) were shot to death at point blank range in their homes in Sailan, in the Surankote Tehsil, of Poonch District. A total of 13 females and 6 male members of three closely related families were killed by 4 Special Police Officers (SPOs), personnel from 9 Paratroopers, an elite commando unit of the Indian Army, and Jammu and Kashmir police officer, then Superintendent of Police (Poonch), J.P Singh, is also implicated in the cover up. The Jammu and Kashmir High Court ordered fresh investigations by the CBI in this case in November 2012 but despite the passage of almost 3 years (and 15 years since the massacre) very little by way of investigations have taken place.
Less than a year after the Sailan massacre, on 29 June 1999, 15 members of related families were killed in Mohra Bachai, Poonch district. The houses of the families were razed to the ground, and burnt with the bodies of the dead inside. Once again the accused were the army, SPOs and then Superintendent of Police (Poonch) J.P. Singh. As in the Sailan case where the CBI has sought to cover up the case, it appears the police have also ensured a cover up in the Mohra Bachai case. 

IN 1993 RAPED AND TORTURED YOUNG GIRL DIES IN HOSPITAL, PERPETRATORS ROAM FREE  

 (
FEW HIGHLIGHTS
Haseena
 was repeatedly raped and tortured for months by Rashid 
Pahloo
. It could be safely said that it was a longest reported rape of any woman in Kashmir.
That day he separated 
Haseena
 from rest of the family and took her to a separate room and raped her there. Nobody has any idea what was happening inside the room, neither 
Haseena
 shared anything about her rape.
Even at one occasion, a Border Security Forces (BSF) patrolling party on spotting 
Haseena
 hanging with the ceiling inside her house entered in and unfastened the rope
.
However, as of now, no investigation was conducted in the FIR and the known perpetrators were masked under the tag of “unknown persons” in the details of FIR.   
)A rape, torture death case by an Ikhwani (member of govt. backed private militia), that was never reported like many other rape cases for over more than two decades, was of twenty-two-year-old, Haseena daughter of Ghulam Nabi of Preng Hajin, Sonawari Bandipora. The victim’s family cited plethora of reasons for not making it public, and the main among them was fear of reprisal from the perpetrators, who are still roaming free. With the wane in Ikhwan the family said make it confident to agitate the matter before the court, however, the family was indecisive for some time through which human rights group the matter would be agitated. The family has lost three members including Haseena and it squarely blames Ikhwanis for their sufferings. A JKCCS volunteer guided the family to this office to take up the matter before the court. 
It was year 1992, Haseena was spotted by Abdul Rashid Pahloo, a group commander of Ikhwan, and thereafter, he was looking for ways to entry the house to satiate his lust. The same group was involved in various human rights violation cases, however, never confronted or questioned by any one. It was the time when these Ikhwanis enjoying full backing and patronage from army, BSF and government. The Ikhwanis had made the lives of common masses miserable. 
Haseena was repeatedly raped and tortured for months by Rashid Pahloo. It could be safely said that it was a longest reported rape of any woman in Kashmir. After all, Rashid Pahloo managed his entry inside Haseena’s house through one Mohammed Akbar Hajaam, a family friend of Haseena’s family. Akbar Hajaam’s younger brother Muzaffar was working with Ikhwanis owing to which he had developed some sort of relation with Mohammad Akbar. However, there is no role of Mohammad Akbar, whatsoever, with the rape and torture of Haseena, or torture of her family. 
According to the Ghulam Hassan, Haseena’s brother, who was just a minor on time of the incident narrated to The Informative Missive that Rashid Pahloo had cast his covetous eyes on the Haseena when he spotted her. It was a time when people confined their daughters within the four walls of their houses, as Ikhwanis operating in the area could do any nasty thing with the girls. Perhaps, Haseena was spotted by Rashid Pahloo on any of the windows of the house. Rashid Pahloo slowly and gradually established a sort of relation with Haseena’s family through Akbar, living in the neighbourhood. Rashid Pahloo’s visits to Haseena’s house were only had mala fide intentions. Then it was a norm that Ikwanis enter any house they want. For about four months Rashid used to come at different times to rape Haseena. For the entire period out of shame and for the safety of her family members, Haseena concealed her repeated rape from her family. On asking about Rashid’s behavior in the separate room, she avoids answering the queries. With every passing day, Rashid increases his visits to Haseena’s house, be it a day or night. He had turned the life of the family into a literal hell. Rashid’s covetous gestures and advances towards Haseena made the entire family suspicious of his conduct. However, nobody objected Rashid’s behavior towards the young girl. Normally on time of Rashid’s visits his men lay siege around the house, in fact, turning the house in a jail. Nobody was allowed in or outside. 
One day, Rashid Pahloo entered the house while his men armed with weapons remained outside the house. That day he separated Haseena from rest of the family and took her to a separate room and raped her there. Nobody has any idea what was happening inside the room, neither Haseena shared anything about her rape. 
After some weeks, another Ikhwani Bashir Ahmad Rather alias Chengez, part of Rashid’s group, without informing his commander visited Haseena’s house with the intention to rape her. He was the person who was privy to Haseena repeatedly rape by Rashid Pahloo. He took Haseena to a separate room and asked her to prepare herself for getting raped. Haseena asked Bashir to handover the hand grenade, he was carrying along, to her as she will place it safely in the house. As soon as Bashir handed over the grenade to Haseena, the desperate girl tried to remove its pin unsuccessfully forcing Bashir to run away from the house. It was then Haseena broke down and revealed everything to her family bit by bit. The family had decided not to return the hand grenade to the Ikhwanis, who can falsely implicate the family by showing recovery of the explosive. The grenade was hid. 
On the other hand, Bashir Ahmad misled his associates that Haseena has snatched the grenade from him. To retrieve the grenade, Ikhwanis frequently raided the house and tortured the family members. Haseena was subjected to heinous forms of torture.  However, the family didn’t relent. The fact of the matter was that the family was in a fix to whom the grenade would be handed over to, army or another other state agency. The dilemma continues for few months, as the family doesn’t want to get falsely implicated in any frivolous case. The Ikhwanis were connected to all state agencies and they were fully aware of their conduct. The raids and torture continued for three months till the family agreed to return the grenade. 
On every raid Haseena was hanged upside down, dragged from room to room, random beating and frequently molested by the Ikhwanis. The continuous torture had taken serious toll on Haseena’s physical and mental health. Even at one occasion, a Border Security Forces (BSF) patrolling party on spotting Haseena hanging with the ceiling inside her house entered in and unfastened the rope. On enquiry, when the BSF men were told that she was hanged by Ikhwanis they left the spot without telling a word. 
The torture and frequent rape ruined Haseena’s health miserable. In 1993, she had also conceived. With deterioration in her health Haseena was shifted to a Srinagar hospital. In the hospital she died after two days. 
After a year FIR No. 139/1995 was filed with Sumbal police station in Haseena’s rape, torture and death. However, as of now, no investigation was conducted in the FIR and the known perpetrators were masked under the tag of “unknown persons” in the details of the FIR.   
In 1993, to avenge the ill-treatment meted out to Haseena and his family, Ghulam Nabi joined Hizbul Mujahideen militant outfit. After remaining active for two years Ghulam Nabi got killed in an encounter at Kulhuma, Bandipora. Pertinently, as an active militant, Ghulam Nabi never attacked Rashid or any of his men. 
In 1999, Rashid Palhoo killed Haseena’s brother Bilal Ahmad, 25, a cloth merchant. Rashid had apprehensions that Bilal could take up the matter of rape and torture with Court or any human rights group. In a planned manner he was shot dead inside the house of Abdul Rehman Bhat, a local Imam. Bilal used to frequently visit the Imam’s house, as both were good friends. 
A brief of Rashid Paloo: 
Abdul Rashid Palhoo, now 48, was a A-category Ikhwani accused in various human rights violations in the Hajin area. He was a group commander of the Ikhwan and was deeply connected with Indian forces. With the wane in Ikhwan, he joined now ruling coalition partner, Peoples Democratic Party (PDP).     

ANATOMY OF AN ENCOUNTER THAT WASN’T

Herein, we are reproducing a write-up about an ‘encounter’ in Pulwama district appeared in Kashmir Reader, a daily newspaper, on August 9 by Najeeb Mubarki, a senior journalist, earlier worked with Economic Times.  
An examination of the ‘encounter’ that took place in Astan Mohalla in Kakapora area (around 20-odd km from Srinagar) of Pulwama on August 06 Thursday, and how it was reported in the media, highlights how easily misinformation about what actually happened and how it was played across pages and TV screens can pass off as facts.
What was reported, on the whole, was that there was a prolonged ‘fierce’ encounter following inputs about the presence of militants in the area; that while one militant was killed, some others were still holed up inside a house; then the news that Indian forces had blasted the house and another dead militant was perhaps buried under the rubble. Then, of course, came the news that no body was found under the debris and perhaps some militants had managed to escape.
The three overwhelming facts, attested to by every local — and the family members of the killed militant, Talib Ahmad Shah, who was a local boy — these reporters spoke to, are that there was actually no encounter; that houses were blasted by Indian forces without any real information on militants hiding inside, and that family members quoted in reports had simply not spoken to the media.
According to locals, Talib was killed right at the start, by some of the very first bullets that were fired by Indian forces after they laid a cordon around the area. There was, they attest, no real exchange of gunfire, certainly not a ‘fierce’ encounter, like when militants and Indian forces often engage each other for hours. Talib, they say, was gunned down near a mobile tower quite close to his family home, while he was probably trying to escape.
	The cordon began at around 2:30pm on Thursday, the shots were fired soon thereafter and, say locals, the houses were blasted at around 6:30 pm. And inmates aver they were given no warning whatsoever prior to the blasts. Neither the Indian forces nor the locals had any knowledge if there were any militants hiding in the primary target of the blasts – a bakery unit cum residence. Locals even on Friday, after Talib’s funeral was over, confessed they just didn’t know if any militants were hiding in the structure and had managed to escape. Indian forces, thus, seem to have blasted the houses on mere suspicion and sans any warning to residents.
	Later, while speaking to these reporters, Talib’s family stressed that accounts from his mother, quoted in the press, on why he joined militant ranks were wrong, and that she had not spoken to the media. The story, in fact, they provided on Talib illustrates other emergent trends in Kashmir.
A journey from protest to gun
 (
‘WE WEREN’T WARNED ABOUT BLASTS’
August 8
: The scene of the blasted building and adjoining residences resembles a mini-war zone. What was once a mud-and-wood bakery unit is now just piles of rubble; mud and jagged pieces of wood, with bags of flour smashed into the dust serving as steps to navigate the 
debris.
 It is clear that this was an enormous explosion. “RDX was used,” says a local surveying the damage, “and then they sent in bulldozers too.”
Everyone stresses there was no warning before the blast, and it was of such an intensity that several surrounding houses have suffered serious damage – ripped off doors and windows, window panes shattered into slivers, cracks in walls, and tin roofs blown off. A piece of a tin roof, in fact, had been blown atop a rather tall tree around 20 
metres
 away from the actual blast site. The claim that there was no ‘fierce’ encounter seems to be borne out by the total absence of bullet marks or holes in all the walls and houses.
It seems, simply, a miracle that no one was hurt or even killed, given the damage the blasting of the ‘suspected’ structure caused. The owner of the bakery unit says that his workers, some of whom had left for the day, were asked to leave the building. The army, locals say, searched every house in the area before triggering the blast. “I guess just the loss of the baking provisions, the machinery — like something I had imported for the baking process and a generator – would amount to a loss of 
Rs
 8 lakh. And that’s apart from the residence,” the bakery owner says. The residents of the other damaged houses too point resignedly at the chaos and debris. There is no talk of compensation yet.
At least seven other houses have been damaged badly, including that of Ghulam Muhammad 
Sofi
, 
Razzaq
 
Sofi
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Nazir
 
Sofi
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Amhad
 
Sofi
, Ali 
Sofi
, Lassa 
Wagay
 and Muhammad Ashraf 
Wagay
.
 
)“Talib,” says a close family member, while the killed LeT militant’s father Shamsuddin Shah, 56, puffs on a hookah almost absentmindedly, sitting on the small patch of rough grass just inside the front gate of the family home, “was passionate about Kashmir’s freedom. But he wanted to achieve that freedom through peaceful means. Yes, he was part of protests, was often booked for stone-pelting, had around 16 FIRs registered against him and was also detained under the PSA. He was also the person who hoisted the green flag at Lal Chowk during the huge rally in 2008. He was arrested under the PSA in 2008 and then again in 2010.”
“He was someone deeply involved in reading and writing,” continues the close relative, around 27 years of age, as the women wailed inside the house, “he has an unpublished book on the Gaw Kadal massacre, and apart from completing an MPEd degree from an institute of physical education in Chennai in 2010, also finished an MA in history from IGNOU, as well as going through ITI training.”
“But he was harassed by the police. A lot. There were FIRs lodged against him when he was not even in the state! Being arrested, interrogated, and the general milieu began to make Talib feel freedom could not be gained through his preferred, peaceful, means. So, he picked up the gun around a year and a half ago.”
“I haven’t seen him since,” interjects his father, “but since he joined militant ranks, the army would frequently come to our home – maybe around 10-15 times since then. His brother too was detained many times, and taken to Cargo (the largest and infamous interrogation centre of the Kashmir Police’s dreaded counter-insurgency wing, the SOG). His cousin too has been under arrest for four months now, and was lodged in the Central jail, but without a challan – since the police have no case or proof against him and merely accuse him of aiding militants. The cousin has also, in contravention of rules, now been custodially shifted to Laripora, Pulwama.”
“Talib met me around 2-3 days ago,” continues the close relative, “just for a few minutes, and asked for some honey. I didn’t know where he was, or if he was still around in the area. The forces say he was coming to meet his family when they killed him; would he do so during the day?” he asks. “I would say he was a good Islamic scholar,” he continues, “had the jazba (passion), but was not allowed to struggle for freedom peacefully. And, yes, there are too many mukhbirs (forces’ informants) around.”
Mother courage
Mother courage In the melee and chaos that ensued during the ‘encounter’ and blasting of a building in Astan Mohalla, an old lady, Fazi wife of Lasse Sofi, spent the night alone in a dilapidated house, right behind the building that was blown up. Seemingly frail and lost in thoughts, she awakens to a sharp sense of humour and courage. “Am just a year younger than you,” she replied to this reporter when asked her age.
Her daughter-in-law, Rashida, had stepped out on hearing the first shots, “An army man told me to go inside or I would be shot,” she says. With three children aged 8, and 10 and a 17-year old daughter, Rashida says the safety of the latter was what drove her to rush out of the house, leaving Fazi behind.
	Fazi, however, seems unfazed by the whole incident. “Yes, the army men were all around, but I am not afraid. My heart is with me, what else do I need? she says, with a toothless grin.

BULLETS AND PELLETS FOR KAKAPORA’S PROTESTORS

Aug 09: It was 9 am, Amir Bashir went to see his aunt, whose house collapsed in the blast engineered by the army in Kakapora, after the killing of a local LeT militant.
“He had gone for tuitions, but he planned to first visit his homeless aunt, who was now staying with her children in a neighbour’s house,” said Bashir Ahmad, Amir’s father.
The 16-year-old, his father says, “Was just trying to be responsible. Because I was not home to empathise with my sister, my son tried to do that, and see what happened,” he trails off.
When the boys of Kakapora and its nearby villages were done with the funeral of the militant, and the protests started, Amir was walking towards his tuition center. “When the protest started he got scared and ran towards a lane, where the police fired on him. They fired three shots at him, hitting him on his back, arm and abdomen,” said Amir’s uncle. “We didn’t know what had happened till we got a call from Pulwama hospital that my son has been shot and they are referring him to SMHS,” adds Bashir.
“I want an answer from the SP as to why my son was shot. He has to answer. And if anything happens, I won’t spare the system,” Bashir said, angrily.
“We have hidden all this from Amir’s mother. She had a spinal cord surgery and at this point wants me and Amir to be by her side. Each day she asks about Amir, and each day I make some excuse. But for how long? asks Bashir.
But the mother of Latief Ahmad, another boy who was shot – in his back by the police – during the protest, cries each time she sees her son.
“We can’t keep her here. She goes mad when she sees her youngest son in bed with glucose and other drips injected in his body,” said Hamid, Latief’s brother.
The 17-year-old was one among many who had gone to attend the funeral of the militant. “We were coming back from the funeral when police men tried to control the mob and shot my brother,” Hamid said.
The bullet is still lodged in Latief’s back as the doctors have withheld the surgery. “We want a senior and experienced doctor to do the surgery. So far, the condition of both the patients is stable,” said a resident doctor, who was not authorised to speak to the media.
Latief’s brother is planning to move courts and ask for an explanation as to why ‘young kids are killed without reason. We need an answer.”
Then there are the pellet-gun injuries. Like another youth, Arbaaz, who was hit by pellets fired by the police in his left eye. This young man left his studies to earn living a living for his family by working as a mason. “I missed the first funeral which was at around 9 am, so I rushed for the second one. And we prayed, some boys chanted pro-freedom slogans which irritated the cops, and they started firing pellets at us,”Arbaaz said.
“They straightaway aim at your eyes without even thinking of the consequences. They don’t even see who is part of the crowd, or who is chanting slogans. Whosoever they catch, he’s called the culprit. This is their way of branding people as stone-pelters,” he said.
Arbaaz’s injuries were serious, and he was been operated on in SMHS hospital on Thursday. “As of now we cannot say anything. But he needs to be operated on again after some days,” said a registrar at the ophthalmology department.
But Arbaaz on Sunday left the hospital without informing the authorities and doctors at SMHS hospital. “We have no idea where he has gone, he left all his medical records here,” a doctor on duty said.
Sajad, another patient at SMHS’ ophthalmology ward, another young man who was hit in the eye by police-fired pellets in Kakapora said, “I had gone to attend the funeral of my schoolmate, who was two classes senior to me. If attending the funeral of your schoolmate is a sin, I am proud to have done that,” he said.
Dr Nisar-ul-Hassan, President Doctor’s Association Kashmir said, “The use of pellet guns is lethal. And one can adduce the lethality by understanding the fact that scores of young children who have been hit by these pellets have gone blind.”




TWO MINORS KILLED, ANOTHER INJURED IN MYSTERIOUS BLAST IN MANASBAL

August 05: Panic gripped the picturesque area of Manasbal when two minors were killed and another was critically injured when an unexploded shell they found, and were fiddling with, went off in Baba Sualin area of central Kashmir’s Ganderbal district, police said.
According to the police, 10-year old Bilal Ahmad Reshi son of Ghulam Hassan Reshi of Baba Sualin Manasbal, a class 5th student of a government middle school died on the spot and 11-year old Shakir Ahmad Reshi succumbed to his injuries at SKIMS Soura, while Muzamil Ahmad, the third child, was critically injured in the explosion.
Police sources said the critically injured two boys were immediately rushed to sub-district hospital Ganderbal, where doctors, seeing their deteriorating condition, referred them to SKIMS Soura for specialised treatment. However, SKIMS sources said that Shakir Ahmad Reshi succumbed to his injuries at the Soura hospital.
	SHO police station Lar, Imtiyaz Ahmad, told Kashmir Reader that it was premature to say if the explosion was caused by an abandoned grenade or an explosive shell. “We have registered a case and investigations are on,” he said.
The tragic incident triggered massive resentment among the local residents who demanded a thorough probe into the incident.

FORMER MILITANT SHOT DEAD IN AWANTIPORA

Aug 25: Gunmen shot dead a former militant in Awantipora area of this south Kashmir district on August 25 evening.
Police said unidentified gunmen barged into the house of one Javaid Ahmad Khan son of Muhammad Rajab at Khandipora village in Awantipora at about 9:45 pm. 
“They fired indiscriminately at him. He sustained multiple bullet wounds and died on spot,” SP Awantipora, Muhammad Irshad said.
Local sources said a volley of bullets was fired by the gunmen inside Khan’s house.
Army and police men have rushed to the spot and cordoned off the area to nab the attackers.
Police said Khan was arrested in 2010 for militancy links and arms and ammunition was recovered from him.
However, of late Khan had been associated with National Conference and worked as a ground level worker for the party. 
He also worked as contractual lecturer in BEd college and had escaped unhurt in a firing at his home in February 2014.
Javaid’s brother Gul Khan was also a militant and killed in 2002.

CIVILIAN KILLED IN ‘BSF FIRING’; PROBE ORDERED

One August 11, a 23-year-old civilian was killed at Malangpora village in south Kashmir’s Pulwama district after Border Security Force (BSF) men allegedly opened fire on protesters in Padgampora area. While the government ordered probe into the killing, the BSF admitted killing by its forces calling it “unfortunate”. 
Reports said hundreds of protesters assembled in the village after news about death of local militants spread there. Soon, they said, the protesters pelted stones on forces and held massive anti-India demonstrations.
“In the meantime, a Road Opening Party of BSF walked through the area and protesters pelted stones on them. The BSF men fired upon the protesters in which a civilian Bilal Ahmad Bhat son of Abdul Ahad of Padgampora was injured. He was shifted to Primary Health Center Awantipora wherefrom he was referred to SMHS hospital Srinagar. But he succumbed to his injuries on the way,” locals said.
After the news of Bilal’s killing spread in the area, people again hit the streets and held massive protests.
Talking to media, Inspector General of Police (Kashmir), Javid Mujtaba Gilani said: “As per the BSF version, its personnel were walking and someone among protesters fired upon them to which they retaliated. One person got injured who later died. We are investigating the matter and examining the BSF version as well.”
Earlier, many people were injured during clashes in Padgampora and other villages, locals said.
Hundreds of people staged protests and pelted stones on forces, triggering clashes. The forces lobbed tear-smoke shells and fired in air to disperse them.
Scores of people sustained injuries in the clashes and were being treated in nearby health centers.
As the Ratnipora encounter was on, hundreds of people assembled near the encounter site and held massive protests.
“The protesters were trying to march towards the encounter site but couldn’t reach there because the gunfight was on. The forces had sealed all roads leading to the area,” locals said.
After 11 am, they said, the protests intensified and spread to other areas and youth pelted stones on forces in Lajoora, Trich, Nadoo and Ratnipora.
The forces lobbed tear smoke shells and resorted to aerial firing to disperse the protesters, triggering fresh clashes in which several protesters were injured.
As bodies of militants, killed in the gunfight, were handed over to locals later, massive protests were held again. 
The protests later spread to Kakapora, Samboora, Lajoora Narwa, Pahoo, Rakh Lajoora, Lelhara, Ratnipora and Trich.
GOVT ORDERS PROBE
An official spokesperson expressed deep sorrow and anguish over loss of a precious human life during protest near Malangpora, in Pulwama, today.
The spokesperson reiterated that the security forces have been asked to exercise maximum restraint while dealing with public protests, particularly to avoid causing physical harm to any civilian. He said the State Government has ordered time-bound investigation and inquiry into the incident to ensure that those who are guilty of the offence are brought to book and punished.
The official spokesperson conveyed the heartfelt sympathies on behalf of the Government to the family of the deceased youth, Bilal Ahmad Bhat, and prayed for peace to the departed soul.
On August 12, the Inspector General BSF Kashmir Frontier, Dr Jagat Singh described the killing of a civilian in the firing by his force personnel at Malangpora Pulwama as “unfortunate”.
He said an inquiry committee has been set up to probe the incident. He said that whatever happened was unfortunate and it should not have happened. “Some time troopers face a tough situation while dealing with violent protesters and they are forced to retaliate,” he said.

PULWAMA OBSERVES SHUTDOWN AGAINST COP’S “MISBEHAVIOR” WITH COLLEGE GIRL
ELDERLY MAN AMONG 2 INJURED IN FRESH CLASHES

August 24: At least two people, including an elderly man have been injured in fresh clashes in this south Kashmir Township, as a complete shutdown is being observed against the alleged misbehaviour by a cop of the Special Operations Group (SOG) with a college girl.
All shops, business establishments, petrol pumps remained closed today across the district in response to the call given by Traders Federation, Pulwama against the alleged misbehaviour with a college girl by a policeman, witnesses told Kashmir Reader. The shutdown also affected the movement of traffic.
However, the traffic remained unaffected on the Srinagar-Jammu highway, where CRPF troopers and policemen were deployed in huge numbers.
At the Murran Chowk, groups of youth assembled this morning and staged demonstrations against the police. Besides chanting pro-freedom slogans, the protesters also pelted the government forces with rocks.
“The government forces burst teargas canisters after they failed to chase away the protesters with batons. This led to the outbreak of clashes that spread to other areas as well,” witnesses said.
Abdul Gaffar Sheikh, 60, of Tral was among the two people injured during the clashes. Sheikh, who was hit by a stone in the head, was removed to the nearby district hospital Pulwama. However, the doctors there referred him to Srinagar for specialized treatment.
On August 24, Monday, violent protests broke out after an SOG cop Babar Ahmad misbehaved with a college girl in the Main Town. The incident triggering fierce clashes leaving at least seven people including four policemen injured. Fearing situation to go out of hands, police filed a case against the accused cop.

9-YEAR-OLD GIRL INJURED IN ARMY FIRING DURING NOCTURNAL RAID

August 24: A nine-year-old girl was injured in firing by army during a raid on a house in Pattan on Sunday night, triggering protests on Srinagar-Baramulla highway.
According to eyewitnesses, the army cordoned the house of Habib Ullah Sheikh in Nihalpora area of Pattan in Baramulla district on Sunday night and herded the family members in the courtyard.
“Apparently to create fear among the locals the army fired in air but a bullet grazed Insha (a class 3 student) in the forehead and leg. The soldiers took her along,” said a local resident, asking for anonymity.
It was learnt that the girl was shifted to the army hospital at the 15 Corps headquarters in Badami Bagh, Srinagar. There was no official word on her condition but local residents said they learnt that she was stable following a surgery.
In protest against the firing, people on Monday blocked the Srinagar- Muzzaffarbad road and demanded stern action against the army personnel involved in the incident.
They said that the dreaded Special Operations Group of the police and soldiers have been harassing the people in the area for the past several days.
On August 18, the SOG personnel had raided the house of a militant, Fayaz Ahmad Baba, and detained his 14-year-old son Irshad Ahmad.
Irshad, despite being a minor was, according to locals, taken to an unknown destination. Locals also alleged that that house of one Ghulam Rasool War was raided on Monday and his family members were harassed.
The protestors, led by the pro-freedom leader and National Front chief Nayeem Ahmad Khan, were demanding stern action against the local SOG men and army.
Khan, while addressing people, pitched for the release of Irshad.
The protestors got pacified and ended protests after they were told that an FIR has been filed against the army at the Police Station Pattan. Irshad was also released after seven days of detention.
Pattan sub-divisional police officer Farooq Ahmad said a case has been registered against the army and asked this reporter to ask the station house officer for details of the FIR.
However, the SHO refused to provide the details.

AUGUST 1 HAUNTS PATTAN INHABITANTS
PATTAN TOWN COMMEMORATING 20TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE KILLING OF TWELVE PEOPLE

August 1: At least 12 persons including 2 cops were shot dead while as 82 persons received bullet injuries when soldiers fired indiscriminately upon people present in busy Pattan market on that fateful day.
 	Narrating the incident, the survivors said on August 1, 1990, an Army Convoy was on way to Srinagar from Baramulla.
 	 “Some private trucks were also part of the long Army convoy. Pattan road was in shambles and there were potholes. The tyre of one of the Army vehicle suddenly burst and Army personnel with their fingers on triggers mistook it as militant attack and resorted to firing that lasted for five to eight minutes. It was a hell like situation. People ran for cover while the vendors and shopkeepers received serious injuries during the stampede. Army directly targeted civilians. Over hundred civilians received bullets among which 12 lost their lives,” they said.
	One of the survivors, Ghulam Hasan Bhat from main town Pattan told CNS that he received 16 bullets and yet Almighty saved his life. “After receiving bullets in arms, legs and lower part of belly, I lied in a gutter. I saw unbridled Army personnel directly targeting people. The dead bodies and injured were lying in blood. I lost conscience after I watched an Army jawan pumping bullets into the body of a fruit seller from Shoch hamlet,” he said.
 	Another survivor from Poshwani who wished not to be named said that on that fateful day, an Assistant Sub Inspector, Abdul Rouf and a police constable, Dilip Singh were present in the market. “Rouf received at least 32 bullets and died on spot and same was the fate of Dilip Singh,” he said.
 	Another eyewitness, Ghulam Mohiudin alias Mohda Kak from Pattan town said that after killing spree, the soldiers entered into Mian Mohalla Pattan and set various residential houses on fire.
 	 “The house of my friend Muhammad Akram was also set on fire by Army men. It sends chill down my spine whenever I remember the incident,” he said. 
 	“Not a single shop opened up for two weeks in the town after the fateful incident. Some of the deceased who were killed in Army firing were identified as Abdul Rouf, Dilip Singh, Ghulam Hasan Zargar, Wali Muhammad Itoo, Abdul Rehman, Habibullah Darzi, mentally-challenged Abdul Khaliq and Nayeem Ahmed Sheikh.”
 	A police official on condition of anonymity said that Army claimed that the civilians were killed in cross firing as militants attacked their convoy. “An FIR No. 124/1990 under section 307, 3/25 still stands registered in police station Pattan,” he said.

 	MASHALI MOHALLA MASSACRE: 6 AUGUST 1990: RELATIVES STAGE PROTEST

August 06: Family members of nine innocents who were gunned down by paramilitary BSF personnel on August 6, 1990) at Mashali Mohalla in old city staged a peaceful sit-in at Press Enclave here on Saturday demanding punishment for the troopers responsible for the killings.
August 6, 1990 night turned out to be an unforgettable horrible night for the Mir, Magloo and Beigh families of Mashali Mohalla Hawal.
The BSF men from 75 Battalion that night not only murdered 9 innocents but also molested women folk. Even E.N.Rammohan who served IG BSF from 1993 to 1996 in Kashmir said that he was ashamed of the incident.
 “Aag lagao. Mere ko dead body chahiye". This is how J K Sharma, then Additional Deputy Inspector General Commandant of BSF’s 75th battalion, told his men before they shot nine innocents in cold blood at Mashali Mohalla Hawal in Old city. Besides DIG Sharma, the other BSF personnel accused were Deputy Commandant R P Bhukal; Head Constable Gajjan Singh and Constable Uttam Singh. All four were initially suspended from service and subsequently given “routine'' postings. The Court Martial was ordered against the DIG Sharma but till date nobody knows about the status of that case,” Human Rights activist Muhamamd Ahsan Untoo who was leading the protest told media that thousands of Kashmiris are languishing in jails for none of their fault while the guilty troopers are roaming freely.
As per data available, the court of inquiry charged Sharma with "omission of effective command and control over his troops which led to uncontrolled firing which led to the death of civilians." 
The other charges are culpable homicide (not amounting to murder) and causing grievous injuries. Sharma has also been charged with committing an outrage on the modesty of a woman. The three BSF personnel also face similar charges. Evidence recorded by the BSF shows that the party led by Sharma unleashed terror on the residents of Mashali Mohalla at 8.50 PM on the fateful night. Houses were set on fire, ammunition and arms were "planted" in the homes of the victims and one woman, who had minutes ago seen her husband being shot down by the BSF men, molested. Two other women, living in houses nearby, were also molested.
According to BSF records, there are eyewitness accounts of BSF personnel confessing that it was the DIG himself who gave the chilling "Aag lagao. Mere ko dead body chahiye", ordered to his men. Further eyewitness accounts claim that after issuing this order, DIG Sharma left the spot. Five minutes later, Mashali Mohalla was resounding with the wails of hysterical women and children. Mehbooba, one of the widows of Mashali Mohalla, told the court of inquiry that she first heard the sound of vehicles screeching at her door and some men shouting, "Pakistani Kutto, Bahar ajayo" (Pakistani dogs, come out). After this she heard sounds of rapid-fire and the shattering of windowpanes. Her husband, Bashir Ahmed Baig, 60,was sleeping by her side. Within minutes, the door was broken down and the BSF men stormed in. They pulled off her clothes. In the meantime, she heard shots in the other room.
Her youngest son, Ajaz, had hidden himself under a table and was dragged out. One of the BSF men shot him too. Mehbooba ran to other room to find her husband, older son Muzzafar and a guest Abdul Rehman, all bleeding from bullet-injuries. Ten minutes later, a BSF officer returned. Seeing a new face in uniform, Mehbooba ran wailing to him, only to be shot at on the left side of her chest. She wrapped a quilt around herself and lay near the body of her husband. Her youngest son died on the way to the hospital.
Abdul Rehman lived to tell the tale though he lost his left eye. The house was then set on fire. Tasleema, the other Mashali Mohalla widow, while giving the graphic account of the massacre at the hands of the BSF said that the BSF personnel came to the first floor of her house and opened fire. 
She hid under the bed when she was pulled out by a trooper, who ripped her clothes and tried to force himself on her. It was the whistle from DIG Sharma a signal to end the "operation" which Tasleema says she herself heard, that saved her from further humiliation. She stepped out only after the firing stopped to see the bodies of her father, Ghulam Qadir Magloo, and her two brothers, Mushtaq and Ahmed Magloo, lying on the ground, riddled with bullets. By their side was their neighbour, Farooq Baig. All of them were dead.
The youngest witness for the BSF's court of inquiry was Baby Jaan, Farooq Baig's 15 year old daughter. She told the court of inquiry how the troopers attempted to molest her when she was hiding under the bed. A BSF officer pulled her out but disgusted with her hysterical screaming, cut open her right cheek with a knife, spat on her and left.
When CNS contacted former IG BSF E.N Rammohan, he said that innocent civilians were killed and there was no question of the perpetrators of the crime being spared. “The accused confessed their crime during court martial and as far my knowledge goes, some of the accused were sentenced for seven years,” he said. He said that in his final noting on the Mashali Mohalla incident, he had stated: "It is clear that the BSF entered the houses of innocent people and shot at totally innocent civilians, killing nine men and injuring two others. Shooting a defense-less lady was a particular cowardly act. The weapons and empties claimed to be recovered from the houses of the civilians were planted by Sharma and the others. A ballistic examination of the weapons seized from the BSF showed that these weapons to have been issued to these people.”
 The relatives of the slain people questioned that how and why the killers of the innocent people are not hanged when Constitution claims that nobody is above law. 

5 of 7 KUNZER VILLAGERS RELEASED AFTER ‘TORTURE’

August 4: Five of the seven persons who were picked up by the dreaded Special Operations Group of police from Karhama village in Kunzer and released on August 3, Monday, said they were tortured in custody.
Two others are still being interrogated at SOG’s Cargo centre in Srinagar, which has gained notoriety as a “torture centre”.
“They were asking us ‘hand over the militants you have been working for and get back the SIM cards you have given to them’. We were ruthlessly beaten up with sticks. You can see that I have developed a limp,” said one of the five men, asking for anonymity as they fear reprisals.
They said they have no idea of what the other two youths, Adil Ahmad Rather and Firdous Ahmad Reshi, who are still in custody, are going through.
	Baramulla superintendent of police Zubair Ahmad Khan said the released persons were not involved in any unlawful activity.
“No FIR has been filed so far. We are investigating the matter. If the other two persons are clean we will release them too,” he said.
	Those who have been released include Raes Ahmad Reshi, a labourer; Firdous Ahmad Reshi a student; Abid Ahmad Rather, a shopkeeper; Younis Ahamd Bhat, an electrician; Hilal Ahmad Wani, a government employee; Mushtaq Ahmad Rather, a medical representative and an elderly farmer, Muhamd Jamal Dar.
	The local residents have accused the police of harassing the people who had protested against the arrest of these men on Saturday Narbal-Tangmarg Road.
	The local residents said that nine people, five women among them, had been injured (two were hospitalized) after being beaten up by the police. They said the SOG personnel have been harassing the people in the village during the past one month.

OVER 500 MINORS DETAINED IN KASHMIR SINCE 2009, DATA REVEALS
POLICE ‘REFUSES’ TO GIVE REPORTS TO 5 SRINAGAR CHILDREN LODGED IN JUVENILE HOME

August 7: There seems to be no end to arrest of minors by police in Kashmir, with fresh reports indicating that few minors lodged at Juvenile Home here are not able to bail themselves out “due to the refusal of cops to provide them the necessary reports.”
According to official sources, few minors detained from Srinagar in the past one week on charges of stone-throwing have been lodged at the Juvenile Home at Harvan, Srinagar. “They are eagerly waiting to be bailed out, but are not able to do so because police is not giving them the requite reports which they can produce before a court,” they said.
Five minors, identified as Mozin Yaqoob from Nowhatta, Bilal Ahmad Makdoomi from Gojwara, Arban Hussain from Nowhatta, Muhammad Danish from Rainawari and Sameer Muabark from Dalgate, were shifted by police to Juvenile Home a week ago, the sources disclosed.
An official at the Juvenile Home admitted these five minors were lodged there.
“Once their parents get the bail orders, we will hand over their wards to them,” the official said.
However, parents of these children said police did not give them reports so that they could obtain a bail from court. “Our applications are lying in police stations of Nowhatta and Rainawari,” they said.
According to data available with officials at Juvenile Home, 506 minors have been detained there on charges of stone-throwing since 2009 and later released.
Officials however have no record of detention of minors before the Home was set-up.
“Before the Juvenile Home was set up, minors were detained and lodged in respective police stations and later released,” an official said.
The Juvenile Home is highly fortified. Besides strong fencing, the building is surrounded with concertina wire.
The Home is being managed by the Social Welfare Department but is no different from a jail, said a minor who was lodged there until recently.
It has 18 rooms whose doors and window are closed with angular-iron and remain always locked, he said.

ARMY ‘FORCES’ YOUTH TO POSE BEFORE CAMERA ALONG WITH AK-47 RIFLE 

August 24: Seeking immediate removal of an Indian army officer and registration of an FIR against him, MLA Batamaloo, Noor Muhammad, and locals of Lawaypora HMT Srinagar wrote a letter to SSP Srinagar Amit Kumar alleging that an Army party headed by an officer from Sharifabad camp forcibly took a local youth to a nearby paddy field and photographed him along with their service rifles and grenades.
Reports said that on 14 August, an Army party from Sharifabad camp detained three youth from Lawaypora locality after they allegedly made a graffiti urging people to observe August 15 (India’s Independence Day) as Black Day.
The youth, after questioning, were immediately released by the Army. Waheed Ahmed Malik son of late Abdul Razak, the cousin of one of the accused told CNS that during late hours on Sunday, the same Army party led by the same officer caught hold of him and took him to a nearby paddy field.
“I was ordered to pose for photographs along with their service rifles. After taking my photographs the officer threatened me of dire consequences and even told me that he knows how to deal with people like me,” Malik said.
Malik reportedly informed his family and friends about the incident who in turn brought the issue into the notice of local legislator and PDP leader Noor Muhammad. “I immediately rushed to Lawaypora and we all approached police station Parimpora and informed the officials there about the unfortunate incident,” Noor Muhammad told CNS.
“In the letter that we have forwarded to SSP Srinagar, we have sought the removal of the officer and immediate registration of FIR against him. We have also highlighted the anti-people actions that this officer has been indulging in the area. He even enters into schools and harass the students there, which is unacceptable,” Noor Muhammad said.
Confirming the incident, Station House Officer Parimpora said that locals from Lawaypora headed by MLA Batamloo registered a complaint against an army officer for allegedly forcing a youth to pose before camera along with the gun. “We will register FIR once we receive a communiqué from the Senior Superintendent of Police Srinagar,” he said.
When contacted, an officer from Kilo Force, said that he will look into the matter and will ascertain the facts.

IN 1 WEEK, OVER DOZEN YOUTH SUSTAIN PELLET INJURIES IN KAIMOH
BOY LOSES VISION IN ONE EYE|HAVE ASKED POLICE NOT TO USE PELLETS, SAYS MINISTER|USE OF PELLETS ‘SOMETIMES NECESSARY’: SP KULGAM|‘PELLET GUNS BANNED IN SRINAGAR’

Aug 26: A youth has lost his eyesight partially while over a dozen others have sustained injuries in a week in south Kashmir’s Kaimoh tehsil with ‘indiscriminate’ use of pellet guns, officials and witnesses said, raising a question mark over the ruling Peoples Democratic Party’s repeated assertion that it was against use of such weapons on demonstrators. Kaimoh area in South Kashmir saw massive clashes and protests recently against arrest of youths, particularly in nocturnal raids, there.
A doctor at Sub-District Hospital Kaimoh said they recently received many people who had pellet injuries on their face and body.
“We received nine cases last week (on Friday). Among them, two were seriously injured and referred to District Hospital Kulgam for advanced treatment,” said Block Medical Officer Kaimoh, Dr Shakeel Majeed.
He said among the two youth referred to DH Kulgam, one had an eye injury while the other had “multiple body injuries.”
On August 24, a doctor said, the SDH again received five pellet injury cases and two of them were shifted to District Hospital Kulgam for further treatment.
“They had multiple injuries all over their body,” the doctor said. “On Tuesday, we again received 12 cases of pellet injuries. One among them was shifted to District Hospital Anantnag given the nature of the injuries.”
Sources in Anantnag district hospital said the youth had “critical” pellet injury and was shifted to SMHS hospital in Srinagar for advanced treatment.
A doctor in SMHS hospital said the youth has “lost vision in one eye.”
“The youth had a perforating eye injury, inflicting severe trauma to his eye ball and the visual prognosis seemed to be very bad,” said Dr Sajad Khanday, Senior Consultant, Ophthalmology at SMHS hospital.
He said the chances that the youth’s vision in the affected eye will recover are “bleak.”
“The pellets had pierced through his left eye and the injury was penetrating,” said Dr Khanday.
The injured youth, identified as Muhammad Asif of Hawoora Khudwani (aged 18) is doing graduation in science.
According to the youth’s family, he was not part of the protests.
“He had gone to Anantnag (Islamabad) town on Tuesday to bring some medicine and was caught in the clashes between protesters and forces,” said Asif’s cousin.
He said the forces fired multiple pellets at him “directly.”
Asif, according to villagers, is eldest among six siblings. His father is a farmer.
“The family is living in abject poverty,” they said.
15-year Navid—a class 10 student from Redwani village in Kaimoh—has also suffered multiple pellet injuries all over his body. Naved, who is recuperating at DH Anantnag, had multiple bruises all over his body.
“On Friday I was riding a motorcycle and going to deliver lunch to my grandfather who is admitted in District Hospital Anantnag when the forces fired pellets towards me,” he said.
Another 10th class student—Danish Ahmad Parray son of Abdul Rehman of Gufbal, Kaimoh—was also hit by multiple pellets all over his body on Monday and is recuperating in the hospital.
“Manzoor Ahmad, a youth from Khudwani, is also recuperating after being hit by pellets in his eye,” a doctor at DH Anantnag said.
Many youth, who have sustained pellet injuries, refused to divulge their identities before this reporter “for fear of police reprisals.”
A youth from Arampora, who was rushed by locals to District Hospital Anantnag, has received grievous injuries all over his face and body due to pellets, doctors said.
“The forces make use of pellet guns and pepper gas frequently in our area to quell pro-freedom and anti-India demonstrations,” said residents of Khudwani.
“Many youth who sustain pellet injuries usually don’t turn up for treatment as they are hounded by security agencies later,” said a doctor in SMHS hospital. “Even if they turn up in OPDs, they apprehend that policemen in civvies will follow them.”
IGP SPEAKS
Inspector General of Police Kashmir, Syed Javid Mujtaba Gillani said he wasn’t aware of use of pellets in Khudwani.
“It is true that the area has been witnessing lot of violence of late but I don’t think so many people will have pellets injuries. But still I will look into it,” he told media.
Senior Peoples Democratic Party leader and Minister for Education, Naeem Akhtar said: “We have made it clear to police to avoid use of pellet guns while dealing with protesters.”
He said he will again take up the issue with senior police officials.
Superintendent of Police, Kulgam, Mumtaz Ahmad however said, “The use of pellets becomes necessary when youth resort to violence.”
He claimed that “we are lately witnessing certain miscreants in Kaimoh-Khudwani resorting to stone pelting, blocking busy Kulgam-Kaimoh-Anantnag road and damaging government property.”
Pertinently, massive protests have been rocking Kaimoh area for the past few days against “harassment and arrest” of youth by cops of Special Operations Group.
‘PELLETS BANNED IN SRINAGAR’
According to police sources, use of pellet guns have been “strictly banned in Srinagar on directions of IGP Kashmir” while “similar instructions are being passed to police officers in other districts as well.”

KASHMIRIS PRIME SUSPECTS: DELHI POLICE TO HOTELIERS

August 27: In a disturbing trend, Kashmiris visiting New Delhi for any work have to convince the staff in hotels that they are not “terrorists” to get accommodation even for one night.
	A lobby manager of a reputed hotel in the capital told media: “We have been told by Delhi Police to keep vigil on Kashmiris.”
Asked why Kashmiris only, he said, “Police believe that Kashmiris are the prime suspects and any of them can be a terrorist.”
The Manager, who claimed that he has been in the hotel industry for the past 25 years, said he has handed over innumerable “Kashmiri terrorists” to police during these years. “We don’t like to trouble our customers. But we have to do it as we have to provide information to police about Kashmiris staying in our hotel,” the manager said. “Police have asked us to maintain complete data of Kashmiri guests if we want to run our hotels.”
Asked to show the order or circular which police have issued in this regard, he said, “These are verbal orders which we have to follow.”
Kashmiris who arrive in Delhi for short stays have to ensure that any of their friends or relatives, who visit them during their stay in a hotel, get their identity cards along. If they fail to do so, the hotel staff ensure that visitors are sent back.
“A group of aspirant Hajjis from Kashmir are staying in your hotel,” a visitor asked the lobby manager of a reputed hotel at Mahipalpur near Indira Gandhi International Airport here.
“First get your identity proof then only I will allow you to meet them,” the lobby manager told the visitor in an authoritarian tone.
“I am not carrying any of my cards to prove my identity,” the guest replied. “Then I am sorry I can’t allow you to meet,” he was told.
The man who had come to visit the aspirant Kashmiri Hajjis returned without uttering a single world and came back nearly after an hour carrying his Voter-ID card and handed it over to the manager. “Initially we used to get annoyed. Now we have learnt to live with it. Even a watchman standing outside the hotel gate can prevent a Kashmiri from entering the hotel premises,” the man told Greater Kashmir.
“Anyone in New Delhi can check the Identity Card of a Kashmiri anywhere. It’s unfortunate but true that Kashmiris are treated as suspects and anyone can hand them over to police just on the basis of mere suspicion,” he added.
When contacted, the duty officer at Mahipalpur police station refused to share any information over the issue and disconnected the phone.

PSA OPERATED AGAINST ALAM IN UNFAIR, UNJUST MANNER: HC
ORDERS HIS RELEASE, SAYS PREVENTIVE DETENTION IS UNDEMOCRATIC, REPUGNANT TO RULE OF LAW

August 27: The High Court ordered the release of senior resistance leader Masrat Alam from detention under the Public Safety Act, saying the law has been “operated against him in an unfair, unjust and unreasonable manner.”
“Preventive detention is undemocratic and repugnant to rule of law. It violates fundamental principle of criminal jurisprudence, which stresses on presumption of innocence of the accused till he is proved guilty in a fair and transparent trial,” Justice Hasnain Massodi said in his 17-page judgment, while quashing Alam’s latest of the nearly 20 detentions under the PSA in the past 25 years.
 “It not only runs contrary to Constitutional ethos but also bruises the Gandhian thought, which forms warp and weft of our socio-political fabric.”
Alam was ordered to be detained under the PSA by the ruling PDP-BJP government to calm down “anger” expressed by Prime Minister Narendra Modi against his release.
To discourage repeated detentions under PSA, courts have held that the second detention order can be passed only if there are fresh grounds. The courts have made it clear that the fresh grounds cannot mean the apprehension expressed by authorities or the police that the detainee might create trouble on his release.
“In this case, (Alam), as stated by (the authorities), is accused in as many as 27 criminal cases and instead of taking effective steps to conclude investigation and to prosecute criminal cases pending against (him) and to oppose grant of bail or even seek cancellation of bail wherever necessary, (official authorities) have resorted to his detention under the Act. If (Alam) is to be believed, (the authorities) have in all slapped 19 detention orders on (him) in the past two-and-a half decades,” the court said, while observing that Alam has suffered detention for most part of the past 25 years with brief intervals.
“Such recourse is repugnant to spirit and mandate of Articles 21 (right to personal liberty). The Act has been operated against (Alam) in an unfair, unjust and unreasonable manner, not in tune with fundamental right to life and personal liberty, guaranteed under Chapter III of the Constitution,” the court said.
 “Perusal of detention record would reveal that material relied upon by detaining authority and mentioned in grounds of detention has not been furnished (to Alam),” the court said.
The court observed the grounds of detention furnished by authorities mostly refer to “alleged omissions and commissions attributed to him in regard to (agitations in) 2008, 2009 and 2010.”
“Such grounds of detention, obviously, were stale and rot available to pass fresh detention, a few years after such events are alleged to have taken place. Furthermore, same grounds were urged in support of previous detention orders, quashed by the court,” Justice Massodi said, observing that that once the detention order is quashes, the grounds in support of such order loose all significance and cannot be used to pass fresh detention order.
The latest of the PSA detention orders on Alam was slapped in April and it followed soon after Indian media channels launched a vicious campaign against his release. The BJP dissociated itself from the decision to release him. Rather, it pulled up its alliance partner PDP, saying the party was not taken into confidence while deciding on his release.
Soon the issue rocked Indian Parliament and Prime Minister Narendra Modi said that Alam’s release was unacceptable and ordered without his government’s consent.
“Repeated detention orders — one after other, in effect perpetuating preventive detention (in present case for two and half decades except brief intervals), therefore, would offend spirit of Article 21 of the Constitution,” the court said.
Even if preventive detention law does not expressly forbid such a course, the court said: “Framers of the Constitution could have least anticipated that scope for preventive detention law left in Article 22 of the Constitution, would lead to such consequence and the law so enacted would make it possible for preventive detention of a person facing criminal charge, for a substantive part of his life. The order impugned deserves to be set-aside on this ground alone.”
The court said no emphasis was needed that preventive detention was an extraordinary measure meant for extraordinary situation and that law enforcing agencies are to have recourse to preventive detention only in case an effort to resist grant of bail to him fails or there is a strong suspicion that accused may be let off on bail.
“(Alam), as already pointed out, was in police custody on the date impugned order was made and (the authorities) without waiting for outcome of application fell back upon the (PSA),” the court said and quashed Alam’s latest PSA order, issued by District Magistrate, Budgam.
“(Alam) be released from preventive detention under order (No.DMB/ PSA/02 of 2015 dated 21st April 2015,” the court said.

GOVT ‘DENIALS’ ON SAINIK COLONY IN SRINAGAR EXPOSED

August 30: : The government had not only planned to allow setting up the proposed Sainik Colony – meant for retired and serving army men – around Srinagar airfield, but the Divisional Commissioner Kashmir had actually “agreed” on allotment of 173 kanals (21 acres) of land identified for the colony on a payment basis.
The documents of 77th Rajya Sainik Board meeting – a copy of which is with Kashmir Reader – chaired by Governor NN Vohra on April 16 this year at Raj Bhavan in Jammu reveal that the Secretary of the Board Brig RS Langeh said the number of soldiers who applied for the plots had increased, and thus the requirement of land for the colony had increased to 350 kanals of state land.
“…Divisional Commissioner Kashmir had agreed for allotment of 173 kanals of land on payment basis in old airfield area and accordingly the case was taken up with the state Home Department. The number of aspirants increased, requiring a total of 350 kanals of land,” the documents reveal, under the section titled “Establishment of Sainik colony at Srinagar”.
	In view of the rush for plots, the documents quote Langeh as saying that a revised proposal has been forwarded to Divisional Commissioner Kashmir and the Home Department (headed by Chief Minister Mufti Mohammad Sayeed) for the allotment of 350 kanals.
	Interestingly, the documents don’t specify whether the colony is meant solely for soldiers who are J&K state subjects. In fact, Governor Vohra in his opening remarks, is quoted as saying that the “state government must take every required step to ensure welfare of all serving and retired defence personnel and their families about 7.8 lakh presently (sic)”.
	During the meeting, Vohra also demanded “early action” on “handing over the possession of 173 Kanals of land already identified for the purpose (sic)” from the Divisional Commissioner and the state Home Department
	On August 14, Kashmir Reader had reported that 173 kanals (21 acres) of land have been identified for the Sainik Colony, where serving and retired army personnel will be allotted plots. So far, 26 officers, 125 Junior Commissioned Officers, and 900 others from different ranks have applied for plots in the colony, proposed to be built on state land.
	The Mufti-led coalition government had dismissed the report as “baseless”. In fact, Deputy Chief Minister Nirmal Singh even denied the government had any plans to build a Sainik Colony in the Valley because such a colony already existed in the Jammu region. He even blamed “separatists” for spreading such rumours. Initially, the party spokesmen of both the coalition partners, PDP and BJP, had endorsed setting up of the colony.
	The J&K High Court Bar Association and Kashmir’s pro-freedom leadership had opposed the proposed Sainik colony.
	Those who attend the 77th Rajya Sainik Board meeting included Governor NN Vohra, Lt Gen DS Hooda GoC-in-C HQ northern command, Chief Secretary Iqbal Khandey, Principal Secretary to the Governor PK Tripathi, Maj Gen Biraj Guha COS HQ 16 corps, Maj Gen Anil Chouhan COS HQ 15 Corps, Brig Raj Purohit (on behalf of COS HQ 9 Corp) and secretary Rajya Sainik Board Brig (retd) RS Langeh. Also, non-official members and special invitees who were present at the meeting were Sqn Ldr RS Chib, Maj Gen GS Jamwal, Maj Gen NS Jamwal, Hony. Capt Bana Singh and Hony. Capt Mohd Hanief Bakshi, Director Resettlement Zone (north) Col Rajiv Chouhan, and representative of the Kendriya Sainik Board New Delhi Lt Col Vivek Joshi.

ARMY STOPS CONSTRUCTION WORK ON MOSQUE INSIDE BADAMIBAGH GARRISON

August 24: The army has not allowed the re-construction of a pre-Partition-era mosque inside the Badami Bagh garrison, triggering a wave of resentment among the local people who either work or run businesses there.
The mosque, built during the reign of dogra Maharaja Hari Singh, was being reconstructed in Saddar Bazar area of the cantonment, which is the headquarters of the army’s 15 Corps.
The angry locals said the mosque was made out of bounds by one Colonel Malhotra on August 13, Thursday, and no one was being allowed to go near it. The worshippers were not allowed to offer Friday prayers last week.
“We pooled funds to carry out the construction work. One storey of the mosque was completed and only the slab was to be laid. However, an officer came last Thursday and ordered that no construction work should be allowed,” said a traders, requesting anonymity for fear of reprisal.
After the officer’s order, he said, the army deployed Military Police to ensure that no one passes walks through the restricted area. He said that the sign board erected outside the Masjid was also removed.
“The army raised another sign board at the entrance that reads ‘out of bounds’. In Ramadan alone about 200-250 worshippers including soldiers would offer prayers at the mosque,” he said.
He said Muslim soldiers would pool money and arrange Iftar at the mosque in Ramadan.
“Why didn’t army object when we started construction? Why did they make excuses when the work was nearing completion?” the trader added.
The traders said that the former GoC 15 Corps Lt General Gurmeet Singh also intervened into the issue before his tenure ended in June last year. However, construction was delayed because of the floods last year.
Besides the Sadder Bazar mosque, the cantonment houses another mosque and the shrine of Peer Mohammad Yousuf Shah near the 2 FOD.
However, for as many as 30 Kashmiri traders and hundreds of employees and soldiers, the Sadder Bazar Masjid is the most convenient due to its proximity to the market.
An employee in the cantonment said that a few officers with a “communal mindset” were creating hurdles in the reconstruction of the mosque.
“It is surprising that army is objecting to the construction when in fact the board itself laid the foundation and raised plinth in 2010,” he said.
Srinagar based army spokesman Lt Colonel NN Joshi told Kashmir Reader that the cantonment board has objected to the construction because no permission has been obtained from them.
“This is a construction without permission. Procedure has to be followed before carrying out construction activities,” Joshi said, adding “Every land has its rule. There are laws that need to be adhered to.”

ARMY NOT ALLOWING ROAD CONSTRUCTION IN URI VILLAGE, SAY LOCALS

Aug 31: The residents of village Churanda in north Kashmir’s Uri have alleged that the Indian army wasn’t allowing the state authorities to construct a road in the area.
The locals said that the government, few years ago, had approved construction of nine-kilometer road link, connecting at least 260 families from the village to the neighboring URI town, under the government of India-sponsored PMGSY scheme. “The construction work on the road was started and the process of earth cutting was extended upto seven kilometers,” village Sarpanch, Lal din Ahmad, told Kashmir Reader.
“Without any reason, the army men stationed in a local unity asked the workers to stop the work,” he added.
	He said that the villagers approached the concerned civil authorities in this regard. “But, the civil authorities failed to convince the army,” he added.
	He said that the residents have also submitted applications with the governor of state, deputy commissioner Baramulla, SDM Uri and general officer commanding of the army. “So far, no authority has been able to persuade the army men,” he added.

GOVT EXTENDS TERM OF KOUL COMMISSION TO MARCH 2016

Aug 31: The government has extended the term of the Koul Commission probing 2010 killings and asked it to complete the inquiry by March 2016.
Sources said the government earlier took a serious note of the delay in the probe by the Commission headed by Justice (Retd) M L Koul and had pressed that the inquiry into killing of over 120 youth in summer unrest in 2010 should be completed by the deadline.
In June, Justice Koul sought extension of 6-months tenure in completing the inquiry pleading that the records were lost in the floods.  
The Koul Commission had written to the government that records were lost in September 2014 deluge and cases “couldn’t be investigated as the evidences have not been recorded in all of them.’’
The previous government headed by Omar Abdullah had last year through a cabinet order approved setting up of Koul Commission to inquire into the circumstances leading to deaths by firing, or otherwise, in law and order situations in different districts of the Valley during 2010 unrest.
It was also tasked to look into the adequacy or otherwise of the force used, fix responsibility, wherever excessive force has been used resulting in fatalities, where due care has not been taken in avoiding such fatalities and suggest measures to avoid the recurrence of such incidents in future and recommend the action to be taken against those found responsible in any such incidents.
This is the sixth time that Koul Commission has been given extension since its inception a year back even as it was supposed to complete the inquiry in three months. 
	In  the month of February this year, sources said Governor N N Vohra gave  extension to the Commission and it was explicitly made clear to Justice (Retd) Koul that he should complete the report in two months and no further extension will be granted to the commission.
	Government sources said the government has made it clear that the inquiry has to be completed within the stipulated time so that action will be initiated over the report.
	Earlier, the Commission had sought Rs 50 lakh for completion of the probe but a senior official said the government has not agreed to that and Justice (Retd) Koul will work only on the salary of the High Court judge.
	Sources said Justice (Retd) Koul has informed the government that he was unable to complete the inquiry as the statements of witnesses couldn’t be recorded in all the cases.  

YOUTH SHOT AT BY CRPF, OLD CITY AREAS PROTEST

August 29: A youth protesting against the detention of four persons during nocturnal raids in Gojwara area was shot in the leg by government forces. Police, however, say no shooting took place, nor was anybody arrested.
Eyewitness told media that locals were peacefully protesting on Saturday against the arrests, when a CRPF man stationed at Saraf Kadal shot at Sajad.
“We started protests from Nowhatta and passed by Kawdara CRPF camp peacefully. After our return to Saraf Kadal chowk, CRPF men stopped us. One of them said ‘get lost or I will shoot you’. Sajad told him ‘ok, shoot’. The CRPF guy then shot him in the leg,” said a protester, requesting anonymity for fear of reprisal.
	Sajad was taken to the SKIMS, Soura, where doctors referred him to SKIMS, Bemina.
	Superintendent of SKIMS, Soura, Dr Farooq Jan said, “The patient has a firearm injury in the leg. Since his leg bone had suffered damage he was referred to orthopaedic department of SKIMS, Bemina.”
	Sajad and others had been protesting against the detention of four persons during Friday night. The police, looking for one Sajad Gilkar, had detained his father Nazir Ahmad Gilkar of Pandaan.
“Between 11 and 11.30pm a group of policemen entered our home. We were about to have dinner when they came in. Without saying anything they broke windowpanes and threw the rice cooker and plates out of the window,” said Sajad.
	The senior Gilkar, who had been hospitalized a month ago for brain hemorrhage, was dragged out of the house by the policemen, he added.
Also, a man and his son and another youth had also been detained at Nowhatta police station.
	After the shooting, and the protests that ensued, the police released the four persons.
	Sub-divisional police officer of Khanyar Aijaz Ahmad told media that the situation was peaceful and no person was detained or injured. Similar views were expressed by station house officer of Nowhatta police station Mudasir Ahmad.

INDIAN AGENCIES KILLED GOSHBUG YOUTH: FAMILY

August 10: The family of a youth whose decomposed body was recovered from an orchard in Sopore on August 9 accused “Indian agencies” of torturing him to death.
The body of Mehraj-ud-din Yatoo, who had gone missing on July 28 after leaving his home in Goshbug, Pattan (Baramulla district), was found in Gund Brath in Sopore.
Abdul Rashid, Mehraj-ud-din’s brother, told Kashmir Reader, “His hands were tied with a rope, one of his eyes had been gouged out and there were burn marks on his body…this shows he had been tortured by Indian agencies like many other people in Baramulla.”
“My brother was not a militant nor had he any link with any organisation. We fail to understand why they killed him. We are sure Indian agencies killed him like they killed innocent people and targeted mobile towers in Sopore and other areas,” he said.
Goshbug, Palhalan and other areas observed a strike against the killing.
Scores of protesters, shouting pro-freedom slogans, clashed with the police in Palhalan in the evening. The protesters threw stones at the government forces who retaliated by firing teargas canisters.

VDC MEMBER ARRESTED FOR SHOOTING DEAD HIS UNCLE

Aug 12: Ramban: Police have arrested a Village Defence Committee (VDC) member for shooting dead his colleague in the mountainous district of Ramban
45-year-old Beer Singh was arrested for gunning down his colleague Tirath Chand of Chothan Senabhathi with his service rifle in Paristhan area of this mountainous district, a senior police officer told media. He said that police have filed a case FIR No 55.2015 under section 304 RPC at the Ramsoo police station and started investigations.
SHO Ramsoo Nasir Ahmed Dar told media that police received information that a VDC member has been attacked and killed by a wild bear in the forests of Hingnee Dhar on Monday evening. He said a police team was deputed to the area to collect the body.
“After conducting post mortem, it surfaced that the VDC man was shot dead by his nephew, also a group member, with his 303 rifle” Dar said, adding “The accused VDC has been disarmed and detained to take investigations to its logical end,”

OFFICIALLY STATED
· 
· ZERO INFILTRATION IN KASHMIR THIS YEAR: GOC SAHA
 ‘200 militants operating in Valley, 21 launch pads functioning across LoC’
Aug 04: The Line of Control (LoC) in Kashmir has so far seen zero infiltration of militants across the border, General Officer Commanding (GoC) 15 Corps Lt Gen Subrata Saha said.
In an informal chat with Rising Kashmir, Lt Gen Saha, who is completing his tenure as Commander of 15 Corps by month end, said there have been eight attempts from across the LoC since January this year. 
“But we foiled all the attempts and ensured that no one enters our territory,” he said adding 17 militants were killed while making those attempts. 
According to figures available 65 militants had sneaked in 2014, 97 in 2013 and 121 in 2012 and so far not a single militant has been able to cross over.
Lt Gen Saha said that an estimated number of 200 militants are operating in Kashmir but “they are on run due to constant pressure of security forces”. 
· 1321 OF 1427 HUMAN RIGHTS COMPLAINTS AGAINST FORCES ARE FALSE: MHA
August 10: Ministry of Home Affairs has stated that 1321 out of the 1427 complaints of human rights excesses involving personnel of Army and central paramilitary forces as false.
According to the annual (2014-15) report of MHA, from January 1994 to December 2014, out of 1427 complaints of human rights excesses received against the personnel of Army and central paramilitary forces, 1401 have been investigated out of which 1321 have been found false.
The report said in 80 cases complaints were found genuine “in which personnel responsible were punished”.  
Citing the Machil encounter of 2010 in which three civilians were killed in a fake encounter, the MHA report states that in November 2014, an army court-martial convicted five army personnel and sentenced them to life imprisonment.
“The government attaches highest importance to the protection of human rights. It has repeatedly expressed its commitment to protection of human rights and prevention of HR violations in the country. The security forces are under instructions to respect the human rights of all people and work steadfastly with a humane face while performing their day-to-day operational duties,” the report said.
It further states that every reported case of human rights violations is taken serious note of, and investigation is made promptly in a transparent manner and taken to its logical conclusion.
“A suitable punitive action is taken against those found guilty.”
Pertinently, in its latest report, Amnesty International accused Government of India and J&K State of “obstructing justice” in Jammu and Kashmir.
Amnesty had stated that the violence in Jammu and Kashmir has taken a “terrible human toll on all sides”.
“From 1990 to 2011, Jammu and Kashmir state government reportedly recorded a total of over 43000 people killed out of which 3642 civilians were killed by security forces,” AI report said.
“21323 were said to be militants while 13226 civilians were killed by armed groups. 5369 security force personnel were killed by armed groups.”
· 17 FACING DETENTION UNDER PSA, RTI REVEALS
August 10: Seventeen people are currently detained under the controversial Public Safety Act (PSA) across the state, even as the official records of the cases dating from 2005to 2014, have been destroyed during last year’s devastative floods.
“As on 21-07-2015, total 17 persons are detained under the Section (8) of the Jammu and Kashmir Public Safety Act, 1978. Three of them are under detention for secessionist activities,” Public Information Officer, Home Department, Syed Sarfaraz Rizvi, says while replying to the right to information (RTI) application filed by a journalism student Ahsan-ul Shafi.
Shafi had also sought the details of the people currently detained under the PSA and also how among them were facing imprisonment for separatist activities.
PSA, which Amnesty International has described as a ‘lawless law’ allows judicial custody for two years without trial and bail.
· ‘26 CIVILIANS KILLED THIS YEAR’
August 12: Twenty-six civilians have been killed this year so far, according to official figures.
The latest data compiled by police reveals spurt in violence as compared to last two years. In 2015, 26 civilians have been killed from January to August 11 as compared to 29 civilian deaths in 12 months of 2014. In 2013, 15 civilians were killed.
According to the annual report of Ministry of Home Affairs, 224 incidents of violence were reported in Jammu and Kashmir in 2014 in comparison to 170 incidents in 2013 which also include civilian deaths and militant attacks.
The state witnessed 86.66 per cent more civilian casualties and 30.58 per cent militant attacks in 2014 in comparison to 2013. 
The official data further reveals that 20 civilians have been injured in past seven months in Kashmir zone. It states that 7 police men, 2 paramilitary forces, 6 Army men and 1 SPO were killed from January 1 to July 23 this year in Kashmir region.
“Six police men, 12 army personnel and one SPO were injured in past seven months in Kashmir,” the official figures read.
In 2014, 59 civilians, 28 policemen, 28 paramilitary forces, 13 Army men and five SPO’s were injured in Kashmir division.
The official document states a total of 56 militants have been killed in past seven months while as 110 militants were killed last year in comparison to 67 in 2013.
Meanwhile, the MHA in its annual report said the ongoing militancy in Jammu and Kashmir is “intrinsically linked” with infiltration of militants from across the border both from the International Border as well as the Line of Control. 
The data maintained by JK police on ceasefire violations reveals that 156 violations have taken place in past seven months in J&K. “During the period of January 2015 and July 23, 156 ceasefire violations have taken place against 226 in 2014,” reads the official document.
· SPURT IN NUMBER OF YOUTHS JOINING MILITANCY: ARMY
Aug 11: Army said there has been a spurt in the number of youths taking to the path of militancy in Kashmir valley over the last two years.
"The figure (of local youth joining militancy) is little over 40, same as the last year.
"But it is definitely more than 2013 and 2012. Yes, to that extent there is an increase and it is something of concern for all the agencies here," General Officer Commanding (GOC) of Srinagar-based 15 Corps Lt Gen Subrata Saha told reporters at a function here.
The Army commander said the infiltration attempts have intensified as 19 militants were killed in nearly a dozen bids along the Line of Control (LoC) in north Kashmir this year.
"This year, the snow got delayed. Since then there have been 11 attempts of infiltration. To that extent, there is an increase in the intensity and in these attempts, 19 infiltrators were eliminated," he said.
Referring to the two infiltration attempts in Kupwara district last week which left an army Jawan and two infiltrators dead, he said the confrontations with the infiltrators in Keran and Tanggadhar sectors happened almost at the same time.
"Last week, we had two confrontations almost at the same time. One in Keran sector and the other in Tangadhar sector. The confrontation in Tangadhar operation is still on," he said.
Asked about a hike in anti-militancy operations in south Kashmir, he said, "It is nothing unusual".
"The operations continue, but there are periods when the movement (of militants) increases. And when that happens, the intensity of our operations increases naturally. We understand that it is very much a part of the same trend. It is related to increase in the movement," he said.
On the media reports about Lashker-e-Toiba (LeT) plan to hijack a civilian aeroplane to seek the release of its jailed members, Lt Gen Saha said the Army is prepared to meet any challenge.
· CAN’T COMPARE CURRENT SITUATION IN KASHMIR WITH 1990S: GOC
August 13: General-officer-Commanding of 15 Corps Lt Gen Subrata Saha said the recent militant attacks in Kashmir cannot be compared to the era of 1990’s when militancy was on its ascendency.
“If we go by the parameters to assess the situation, there is no way to compare the recent militant attacks to 90’s era so I believe this is a very loose statement,” Saha said on the sidelines of a seminar organized by Army here Thursday.
Saha said since May end 11 attempts of infiltration have taken place in which 19 militants were killed.  “So yes there is definitely increase in the intensity of infiltration attempts but the counter infiltration grid is pretty robust and is facing all the challenges,” he told reporters.
Responding to a query regarding spurt in militancy related incidents in past few weeks, General Saha said: “It is because of little increase in the reports of movements where there is an increase in operations as well.”
On educated youth joining militancy, he said local recruitment is 40 and is more or less at par with 2014.
	“The observation on rise of local militant recruits is right. Sometimes intensity of such movements increase, but at the same time we have also intensified our operations accordingly,” Saha added.
· I KNOWS HOW SECRET FUNDS WERE BEING PUMPED: FAROOQ ABDULLAH 
August 20: The National Conference president Dr Farooq Abdullah stirred another controversy by revealing that as the former Chief Minister of the State he knows how secret funds were being pumped into Kashmir for separatists, militants and political parties.
In an interview to a New Delhi based news channel, Dr Farooq candidly admits that money was being provided to separatists, militants and also political parties. “As (the former) Chief Minister, I know how secret funds were being pumped into Kashmir. You are not working in a normal atmosphere. You are working where a nation is threatening you. This (pumping money) is a message that look we are here, don’t look at that side, you (Kashmiris) are part of us, you can’t go to that side. This is a message that we are here to help not to kill,” he said in reply to a question that the former RAW chief AS Dulat claimed in his book, Kashmir: ‘The Vajpayee years’ that India was funding separatists, political parties and militants also. Dr Farooq said that what is wrong in giving money to separatists to help them emerge as better people.”
The NC president said he should be congratulated for exposing it rather than hiding it. He also revealed that he had helped the son of UJC chief Syed Salahudin’s son to get a placement in the J&K’s Medical College.


	DATE 
	TROOPERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	August 01
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 03
	-
	1
	-
	-

	August 04
	2
	-
	1
	-

	August 05
	2
	1
	2
	-

	August 06
	-
	1
	-
	-

	August 07
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 08
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 09
	1
	2
	-
	-

	August 10
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 11
	-
	2
	1
	-

	August 12
	1
	-
	-
	-

	August 13
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 14
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 15
	-
	-
	5
	-

	August 16
	-
	-
	1
	-

	August 17
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 18
	-
	-
	1
	-

	August 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 20
	
	
	
	

	August 21
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 22
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 23
	-
	3
	-
	-

	August 24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 25
	1 JCO
	-
	1
	-

	August 26
	-
	1
	-
	-

	August 27
	-
	3
	-
	-

	August 28
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 29
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 30
	-
	-
	-
	-

	August 31
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Total 
	7
	14
	12
	0

	INTOTO
	33 KILLINGS 



CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS
Aug 01: No incident of violence reported. 
Aug 02: No incident of violence reported.
Aug 03: Body of Tariq Ahmad Mir of little known rouge militant group Lashker-e-Islam was recovered from a flood channel in Naidkhai area. 
Aug 04: Two army soldiers were killed when the army of another party, on ambush, fired at a patrolling party in Tral area of south Kashmir. In a separate incident, India accused Pakistani rangers of killing a civilian along Kanachak in Jammu province. The identity of the civilian was not ascertained.  
Aug 05: In a militant attack in Udhampure two BSF soldiers and a Pakistani militant were killed and 11 persons were injured. In a separate incident, two minors were killed and another was critically injured when they fiddle with an abandoned shell in Manasbal area of Ganderbal district.  The deceased civilian were identified as Bilal Ahmad Reshi, 10, son of Ghulam Hassan Reshi of Baba Sualin Manasbal and Shakir Ahmad Reshi, 11 and the injured as Muzamil. 
Aug 06: One militant associated with LET, holding position of its district commander, was killed in an encounter that took place in Kakapora area of Pulwama district. The slain militant was identified Talib Ahmad Shah son of Mohammad Afzal Shah.   
Aug 07: Dozens injured some of them critically, in the clashes during protests against killing of a local militant in Pulwama district.  
Aug 08: Two Indian troopers including an officer were injured in cross LOC shelling along Kupwara sector in north Kashmir. Meanwhile, residents of Kakapora and Pulwama observed strike against the killing of a local militant on August 6. Police claimed it has arrested five alleged stone throwers from Pulwama. 
Aug 09: Army claim it has foiled two infiltration bid by killing two militants while one of its soldier also was also got killed along LOC in  Tengdar and Keran sectors in Kupwara district.  
Aug 10: Two separate encounters between Indian forces and militant took place at Bijbehara and Pulwama. No causality was reported. In both the shoot outs militants managed to give slip to the forces.   
Aug 11: Two militants belonged to LET were killed in a long gun battle within Indian forces In Ratnipora village of South Kashmir’s Pulwama district. The militants were identified as Showkat Lone s/o Gh. Mohammad Lone of Lelhar, Pulwama and Gulzar Ahmad Bhat of Talangam, Pulwama. While a civilian Bilal Ahmad Bhat was killed by BSF soldiers, who fired on the unarmed protestors in Pulwama.   
Aug 12: Two army soldiers were injured when militants fired on their search party near Trenz are of Shopian. While three policemen CRPF trooper and a civilian were injured in a grenade explosion at Khanyar. An army soldier committed suicide by shooting himself dead with his service rifle at 16 Corps Nagrota, Jammu. The deceased has been identified as Lance Naik Deepak Singh.  
Aug 13: Ten persons were injured in a low intensity explosion that took place outside a Masjid in Shopian area of South Kashmir. While another explosive, planted outside a militant’s house, was defused at Oehlipora village of Shopian district.  
Aug 14: Six persons were injured in clashes in south Kashmir’s Pulwama district which took place during a protest demonstration against killing of a civilian on August 11. 
Aug 15: Five civilians were killed and many injured in cross boarder shelling on both sides of J&K, this side in Balakote and Saujiyon in Poonch. Three of the slain civilians were identified as Sarpanch Haji Karamatulla Hussain, 48, s/o Waliyat Hussain of Balakote, Master Abdul Rehman son of Khadim Hussain and Sheeraz, 17, son of Guldad resident of Balakote.    
Aug 16: A woman injured in cross LOC firing at Balakote succumbed to her injuries. She was identified as Masarat Kousar wife of Hallem Khan of Behrote, Balkote Poonch. 
Aug 17: No incident of violence reported.
Aug 18: A civilian, who was injured in an attack by suspected militants on policemen in Sopore, has succumbed to his injuries at hospital. The civilian, identified as Abdur Rahim Lone son of Jamal ud-Din Lone, succumbed to his injuries shortly after he was taken to the sub-district hospital, Sopore, for treatment, deputy inspector general of police (north Kashmir) Gareeb Das told media. With his death, the toll in the surprise attack on policemen manning a shrine in Tujjar Sharief area of Sopore has reached two. Earlier, Fayaz Ahmad, a constable of the 13 Battalion of Indian Reserve Police died of bullet injuries in the attack.
Aug 19: No incident of violence reported.
Aug 20: No incident of violence reported.
Aug 21: No incident of violence reported.
Aug 22: No incident of violence reported.
[bookmark: _GoBack]Aug 23: Army and police claimed they have killed three unidentified militants in a gunfight that took place in Krumhura-Rajwara forests 18 KM from Handwara town in district Kupwara. None of the militants have been identified. 
Aug 24: A nine-year-old girl was injured in firing by army during nocturnal raid on a house in Pattan. The incident triggered protests by the locals there.  
Aug 25: An Indian army JOC was killed in cross border shelling with Pakistani rangers along the border in Kupwara district. In a separate incident, a former militant was killed by unknown gunmen in Awantipora of district Anantnag. The slain has been identified as Javaid Ahmad Khan s/o Mohammad Rajab of Khandaypora village of Awantipora. While protests and shutdown continuous in Pulwama against the molestation of a college girl by police on August 24.  
Aug 26: An unidentified militant was killed in an encounter with troopers in Uri sector of north Kashmir.  
Aug 27: Police claimed three militants were killed while one militant of foreign origin was captured alive in Rafiabad area of Baramulla district.
Aug 28: No incident of violence reported. 
Aug 29: A youth protester was shot at by CRPF personnel in old city of Srinagar. The injured has been identified as Sajad who was fired in his leg after some altercation with a CRPF personnel deployed there. While according to reports 18 army troopers were injured seven of them critically when an explosion went off at an army camp in Khrew. The clast took place during a training exercise.  
Aug 30: No incident of violence reported. 
Aug 31: No incident of violence reported.
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